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DECLARATION OF LAURA C. BREMER IN SUPPORT OF OFCCP’S MOTION FOR
LEAVE TO FILE A SECOND AMENDED COMPLAINT

I, Laura Bremer, state and declare as follows.
1. I am a Senior Trial Attorney for the U.S. Department of Labor, Office

of the Solicitor, and counsel of record for Plaintiff in this action. I submit this
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declaration in support of OFCCP’s Motion for Leave to File a Second Amended
Complaint. I have personal knowledge of the matters set forth in this declaration,

and I could and would competently testify thereto if called upon to do so.

2. Attached as Exhibit 1 is a true and correct copy of an Oracle Fact
Sheet copied from Oracle’s website on January 8, 2019, which claims that Oracle
“is the #1 provider of business software,” provides “the world’s #1 database,” and
provides its technology to top companies and governments worldwide.

http://www.oracle.com/us/corporate/oracle-fact-sheet-079219.pdf

3.  Attached as Exhibit 2 is a true and correct copy of a letter from Erin
Connell to Marc Pilotin, dated August 7, 2017. On page 2 of the letter, Oracle
stipulated “it has been a covered federal contractor for over 20 years and the total

amount of its government contracts has exceeded $100 million each year since
2013.”

4. OFCCP’s Supplemental Objections And Answers To Defendant
Oracle America, Inc.’s Interrogatories, Set One (As Amended), response to
interrogatory No. 21 includes the following response regarding records Oracle
refused to produce during the compliance review: “Oracle failed to produce:
applicant and hiring data, such as data regarding name of school attended and prior
degrees earned, years of prior work experience and prior salary before being hired
by Oracle, compensation data such as the 1/13/13 snapshot, Oracle’s pay equity
analysis, employee personnel actions, employee contact information, data for the
2012 applicant flow log, internal complaints, external arbitration complaints,
documents regarding compensation and hiring, etc.”
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5. A true and correct copy of the Notice of Violation dated March 11,
2016, that OFCCP sent to Oracle is attached hereto as Exhibit 3.

6. OFCCP served OFCCP’s First Set of Requests for the Production of
Documents (“RFPs”) to Oracle of America, Inc. on February 10, 2017.

7. OFCCP served OFCCP’s Second Set of RFPs to Oracle of America,
Inc. on February 21, 2017.

8. On March 2, 2017, OFCCP served a notice of a 30(b)(6) deposition
seeking testimony about Oracle’s systems and databases for maintaining data that
OFCCP requested during the compliance review that Oracle did not produce. I
met and conferred with Erin Connell on March 15, 2017 by telephone regarding
the 30(b)(6) deposition OFCCP had noticed. Oracle was unwilling to agree to
depositions until a protective order had been entered and the temporal scope of this

matter had been resolved.

9. Oracle filed a motion for protective order, and a motion for summary

judgment on April 21, 2017.

10.  Oracle continued to object to any discovery outside a narrow 18-
month time frame, despite the allegations in the complaint that it discriminated
from at least 2013 to the present. On May 2, 2017, OFCCP brought a motion to
overrule Oracle’s objections to the temporal scope of discovery. Oracle filed a
motion for judgment on the pleadings on May 5, 2017, At the time these motions
were filed, Oracle still had not produced any documents or witnesses in response to

OFCCP’s discovery requests.
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11.  Oracle did not begin producing documents until May 25, 2017.

12, On August 18,2017, OFCCP filed a motion to compel. While the
parties had reached agreements on many requests for documents, as of August 18,
2017, Oracle had only produced approximately 23,000 pages of documents, many
of which were emails between OFCCP and Oracle (which OFCCP already had) or
duplicates of documents previously produced. It had not produced any data for the

hiring or compensation of its employees.

13.  On October 11, 2017, Oracle began producing data for all employees
at its headquarters in the Product Development, Info Tech, and Support job
functions from January 1, 2013 through January 17, 2017, as well as data for

college recruits. Oracle produced additional data on October 31, 2017.

14.  On October 26, 2017, OFCCP and Oracle notified the ALJ that they
were requesting “a stay of the litigation to allow the parties to focus their efforts
and resources on resolving this matter through mediation.” An order staying the
proceeding was issued on October 30, 2017. Additional orders extended the stay
of the case while mediation efforts continued. The parties continued mediation

efforts through October 2019.

15. Written discovery is not complete. Oracle has not responded to all
requests for documents previously served, or produced all the documents it agreed
to produce. For example, Oracle has not produced internal pay equity analyses it
conducted pursuant to OFCCP’s regulations, and it has not supplemented its initial

data production to cover time periods from January 1, 2017 to the present.
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Additionally, OFCCP plans to serve additional discovery requests. Depositions

have not yet commenced.

[ declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of

America that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed on January 22, 2019 in San Francisco, California.

Hyo ¢ Hemse

LAURA C. BREMER
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Emerging technologies are disrupting old paradigms and unleashing new
opportunities. Oracle has embedded innovative technologies in every
aspect of our cloud, enabling companies to reimagine their businesses,
processes, and experiences. And the world’s #1 database is now
autonomous, allowing enterprises to innovate at the speed of a startup.

Artficial intetigence, blockehain, the Internet of Things, machine learning, and other emerging
tachnologes permeate every aspect of work and hie These technologies help us reimaging
what's possible: seli-diving cars, personalized medicine, precision agricuiture, and smart aities

Oracle provides essential elements for companies to pioneer innovations and drive new business
models. For example, applications based on artificial intelligence (Al) can suggest the next bast
actions, automate answers, and provide personalized service. Cracle embeds machine learning
into several manageniant and security offerings to help monitor, troubleshoot, and predict potential
outages and secunty breaches. We enable automated but personahized interactions acioss

our applications via digital assistanis—and we've integrated Al into analytics to help discover
hidden patterns.

Oracle helps customers develop roadmaps, migrate to the cloud, and 1ake advantags of emerging
technalogies from any point: new cloud deployments, on premuses environments, and hybrid
impiementations. Oracle's approach makes it easy for companies to get started in the cloud and
even easier {0 expand as business grows

Oracle is the #1 providar of busingss software, wih a broad portfolio of solutions for companies
of all sizes,

ORACLE CLOUD: SEAMLESSLY INTEGRATED, FUNDAMENTALLY SECURE

Oracle Cloud Infrastructure serves as the foundationa! layer for Oracle Autonomous Database, as
well as for Oracle's platform and apphcation services. It1s a second-generation cloud infrastructure
des:gned to run any enierprise application and workload securely in the cloud In a single offering
Oracle Cloud Infrastructure combines the flexibility and cost benefits of a public cloud with the
predictability and cantrol of an on-premises environment

With the introduction of Qracle Autgnomoys Database, the industry's only self-dnving, self-securing,

and self-repairing database, Oracle is again revolutiomzing how data is managed This groundbreaking

database technology delvers outstanding secunity with unmatched availability and performance
OFCCP v. Oracle America, inc., 2017-OFC-00006
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Dracle Corporation
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Cracie Cloyd Platfgrm serves as the foundsat on for building, runming, integratng, monitorng, and
secunng applicatons, as weli as for driving newv nsights, Oracle Cloud Platiorm provides a complete
set of open and siandards-based tools that span data management application devaiopment,
negration, analyiics and brg data, management. and secunty. With Oracle’s advanced capabilitias,
customers can rapidly provision resources and dramatically simphfy patching, uparades, backups
and restoration

Oracle Cloud Applications —including enterprise resource planning, enterprise performance
management, customer experience, and human capital and supply chain management—
embed Al capabilities and machine learning 1o help organizations derive better insights about
customers, employess, and processes. Al-enabled applications not only may detect business
trends—but aiso learn from the results and make recommendations that add business vatue
Decision science drives the cutcomes for bus:ness leaders without always requining help from
data scientists or IT

Oracle Cloud Applications are built 1o support modern digital business processes, fugled by the
power of data. This means that applications can be connected seamlessly and intelligently-~turning
insight into action. With integrated Al and maching learning, Oracle’s cloud applications can dehver
more immediate busingss impact.

Oracle also provides industry-specific applications for running a customer's core business, on
premises ar in the cloud, for more than two dozen industries.

OPEN AND INNOVATIVE DEVELOPMENT PLATFORM

Oracla is committed to delivering an open standards-based development platform that supports
not orly Oracle products, but also open source technelogies for blockchan, containers, serverless,
Al maching learning, streaming technologies, and various programming languages Developers
have the option to use their preferred application stack for developing and deploying apphcations
on Oracle Cloud

PATHWAYS TO INNOVATION

Oracle uniquely offers multiple paths and services to faciitate a customer’s move to the cloud Qur

cloud strategy Is built on the undarstanding that cloud and on-premises implementations must coexist

This giwes customers a path that meets their future needs while allowing them to preserve and

upgrade their existing investments. With free trals and our "bring your gwn license” and "ynivarsal
credit pricing” programs. Oracle makes it easy for organizations 1o try, buy, and censume cloud
services white leveraging existing Oracle investments, And Qragle Soar, the world's first automated
cloud migration offering, enables customers to save time and resources. As part of cur commitment
to customer success, Oracle offers world-class consulting, support, and training

Today, 430,000 customers in 175 countries use Oracle lechnologies 1o seize business opporiunitias
and solve real, tangible challenges

CONNECT WITH US

', [ [F B v [

Intagrated Cloud Applications & Platform Services
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Oracle Leadership
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Oracle Customaers Include
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August 7, 2017 Orrick, Herringtan & Sutcliffe LLP
The Qrrck Buiidinig
Via E-Mail 405 Howard Streot

SanFrancisco, CA 941062669
+V 4157725700

Mare Pilotin OHIEh ey

Trial Atrorney

Office of Solicitor Erin M. Connall

90 7th Street, Suite 3 700 E econnel@orrick com
San Francisco, C\ 94103 D +1 415 773 5969

F +1 415773 5739

Re: OFCCP v. Oracle America, Inc. Redwood Shores, California (OAL)
Case No. 2017-OFC 00006)

Dear Mr. Pilotin:

1 write in response to your letrer on Friday (August 4, 2017), as well as to memorialize the discussion
from our meet and confer call earkier today (August 7, 2017).

1. Employee Contact Information

We agree that the parties are at tmpasse on this issue and will need to raise it with Judge Larsen. \s
I noted on our call today, however, your letter does not accurately reflect Oracle’s positon as
discussed on Friday. Although I did ask 1if OFCCP would be willing to consider an attorney’s eyes
only (*ALEO") provision in the protective order, [ did not affirmatvely state Oracle was insisting
upon it 1 addrtion to a Bekwre nouce. My understanding from our discusston is that an AEO
provision is not something OFCCP is willing to consider. Additionally, T explained that in cases
where courts do not require a Belaire process, there is usually an AEO prowvision 1 place. | also
explained that courts frequently require a Bedaire process where emails and phone numbers are
involved, and I asked 1f OFCCP would agree to limit its request to mailing addresses only. My
understanding from the eall 1s that OFCCP 1s not willing to limit its request in this way.

I. RFEP NMNo. 67: Internal Complaints

In your letter dated \ugust 4, 2017, you acknowledged Oracle’s proposal regarding this request and
requested that Oracle add documents regarding “any verbal complaints made to the HR managers
wdeniified in Oracle’s proposal.” After reviewing vour request, we agree to modify our prior
proposal [rom my letter dated August 3, 2017, to include a reasonably diligene search for and
production of documents reflecting such verbal complaints. This is, of course, subject to those
documents being “relevant” 1n terms of the scope proposed in my letter dated August 3, 2017, and
to which you agreed on last Friday’s eall.

OHSUSA 767210901 §
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Marc Piloun
August 7, 2017
Page 2

II1. RFP No. 70: Government Contracts

For RFP No. 70, you agreed on Friday’s call to our proposal {rom August 3, 2017 whereby Oracle
will supulate that it has been a covered federal contractor for over 20 years and the total amount of
us government contracts has exceeded $100 million each year since 2013,

1v. Review and Production of Email in Response to Certain Requests

As we discussed on taday’s call, Oracle acknowledges that any agreements reflected below are made
without prejudice to QFCCP’s ability to review the documents produced by Oracle and make a
tequest for the review and production of additional documents it determincs are necessary based on
these intial productions. Stmilatly, Oracle maintains its objections to many of these requests.

A. RFP Nos. 17, 18, and 22 (College Rectuiting)

For RFP No. 17, we agree to the proposal in your letter dated August 4, 2017; Oracle will use the
domain names for domestic colleges and universities from the College Recruiting Sourcing
handbook as inizial search terms for its review and production of documents from the period of
January 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014.

For RFP No. 18, as we discussed on today’s eall, given the volume of documents for the custodians
implicated by this request, we agtee to your proposal that Oracle review and produce responsive,
non-privileged documents from a three-month ume period (to be chosen by OFCCP) for the
relevant custodians without the use of search terms. You stated that you would get back ro us
shordy with the three-month ume period.

For RFP No. 22, as [ explained on today’s call, Oracle’s proposed search terms consist of the names
of applicants that appear on the applicant data spreadsheets that were submitted to QFCCP during
1ts mitial comphiance avdit. You agreed to our proposal that Oracle’s review will involve the use of
these search rerms on the relevant custodians for the January 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014 pernod.

B. RFP Nos. 39, 40 & 42-45 (Experienced Recruiting and Transfer Employecs)

For RIFP Nos. 42-45, you agreed to Oracle’s proposal that it produce dacuments from the fanuary 1
2013 to June 30, 2014 tme penod that have been identfied for review through the use of search
terms on the emails of relevant custodians. To clanfy my letter dated August 3, 2017, the set of
documents to be reviewed for these requests will include documents that hut on search terms
comprised of the names of expenenced recruiting applicants to PT1 positions at HQCA OR the
requistion numbers associated with PT1 positions at HQC\ during the January 1, 2013 to june 30,

1

OlISUSA 767250001 |
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2014 ume period. Documents that hit on cither of these sets of scarch terms will be reviewed and
need not be responsive to both.

For Request Nos. 39 and 40, similar to Request No. 18 discussed above, Oracle agrees to review and
produce responsive, non-privileged documents from a three-month time period (to be chosen by
OFCCP) for the relevant custodians without the use of search terms. You stated that you would get
back to us shortly with the three month ume period.

C. RFP Nos. 24 & 25 (Larry Lynn and Chantal Dumont)

For Request No. 24 regarding the emails of Larry Lynn, we agree to the proposal in your letter dated
August 4, 2017.

For Request No. 25 regarding the emails of Chantal Dumont, as I explained on our eall today, Ms.
Dumont’s volume of emats from the January 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014 period necessitates either the
use of search terms or a smaller sample period than initally proposed in your letter. You said that a
three-month review period similar to that discussed for Request Nos. 18, 39, and 40 would be
sufficient, and you said you would get back to us on that precise period later today.

D. RFP No. 46 (Joyce Westerdahl)

FFar Joyee Westerdahl, Oracle is willing 1o agree to the review and producton of her emails from the
January 1, 2013 to Junc 30, 2014 penod without the ptior usc of search terms subject to your
modificaton of RFP No. 46 as outlined in your letter dated August 4, 2017. (1 also noted that, to
the extent that Ms. Westerdahl has any documents that relate to gender discrimination related to a
position in the PT1 job group thar falls within the narrow subsct of jobs outside the Product
Devclopment, Support, or IT lines of business, those documents would not be considered relevant
and responsive.)

You stated that you had originally anticipated that Oracle would review Ms. Westerdahl’s emails
from the January 1, 2013 to January 17, 2017 tme period without the use of any search terms;
however, as I explained in my letter dated August 3, 2017 and on today’s call, this would be unduly
burdensome and disproportionate because Ms. Westerdahl has almost 30,000 documents from this
ume period. Accordingly, you stated you would speak with your team about potentially limiting
your request to the fanuary 1, 2013, to June 30, 2014 tmc period or a three-month sample period,
and that you would get back to us shortly. I further note that any agreement by OFCCP to Limit
Oracle’s imudal search of Ms. Westerdah!’s emails to the January 1, 2013, to June 30, 2014 time
peniod would be without prejudice to OFCCP’s ability to later argue that a similar review of her

OIISUSA 767210001 |
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emalls for the longer ime penod s apprapiiate, based on OFCCIY’s review of the 1niual set of emails
produced.

Very truly yours,

E;qh Crnndl /%u-.,

Erin M. Connell

QIISUSA 767210900 1
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U.S. Department of Labor Cifice of Federal Contract Compliance Programs
Graatar San Francisco/Bay Disirict Oflice
80 7% Etreel, Suite 11-100
San Francisco, CA 94703

March 11, 2016

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL,
7015 0640 0001 2393 5541
(RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED)

Safa A, Catz

Merk Hord

Chief Executive Officers
ORACLE America, Inc.

500 Oracle Patloway
Redwood Shores, CA 94085

Rii: COMPLIANCE EVALUATION OF ORACLE AMERICA, INC.,,
REDWOOD SHORES, CALIFORNIA; OFCCP NO. R00192699

Dear Ms. Catz and Mr. Hurd:

The United States Department of Labor (“DOL"), Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs
(‘OFCCP"), is conducting a compliance evalvation of ORACLE Americs, Inc. (“ORACLE") in
Redwood Shores, California pursuant to 41 Code of Federal Regulations (“C.F.R.”) Chapter 60:
Bxecutive Order 11246, as amended (“BE.O. 11246"), Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as

amended (“Section 503"); and the Vietnam Era Veterans' Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974, as
ampended (“VEVRAA™).

QFCCP found that ORACLE violated E.O. 11246. Consequently, OFCCP is issuing this Notice of

Violations to ORACLE. ORACLE's violations, and the corrective actions required to remedy them, are
set forth below.

HIRING DISCRIMINATYON (VIOLATION 1)
1. YIOLATION:

During the review peried from January §, 2013 through June 30, 2014, ORACLE discriminated
against qualified African American, Hispanic and White (hereinefier “non-Asians™) applicants in
favor of Asian applicants, particutarly Asian Indiens, based upon race in its recruiting and hiring

practices for Professional Technical 1, Individual Contributor (“PT1") roles, in violation of 41
C.F.R. 60-1.4(2)(1).

Specifically, during the period of January I, 2013 through June 30, 2014, ORACLE recruiled
approximately 6800 applicants to PTL roles. OF those applicants, ORACLE recruited 2% African

OFCCP v. Oracle America, Inc., 2017-OFC-00006 Exhibit 3 to the Declaration of Laura Bremer
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OFCCP No. R00192699
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Americans, 2.5% Hispanics, 19% Whites and 76% Asian applicants. Of the Agian applicants, Asian
Indians were nearly 70% of Asian applicants and over 50% of all applicants in PT1,!

An analysis of ORACLE's applicant data and appropriete workforce availability statistics® show that
ORACLE favored Asian applicants, particularly Asian Indians, in recruiting at a standard dsviation
as significant as +85. ORACLE disfavored non-Asian applicants in recruiting, particularly African

American, Hispanic and White applicants, at standard doeviations as significant as -8, -10, and -80,
respectively.

Additionally, during the period of January 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014, ORACLE hired
approximately 670 applicants into PT1 roles. Of those bires, ORACLE hired 1% African
Americans, 2% Hispagics, 14% Whites, and 82% Asian applicants. Of the Asian hires, Asian
Indians were nearly 60% of Asien hires and 45% of alt hires in PT1.

An analysis of ORACLE’s hiring data and appropriate workforce availability statistics® show that
ORACLE favored Asian applicants, particularly Asian Indians, in hiring at a standard deviation ag
signifieant as +30. ORACLE disfavored non-Asian applicants in hiring, particularly African

American, Hispanic and White applicants, at standard deviations as significant as -4, -3, and 28,
respectively,

Evidence gathered during the compliance evaluation demonstrates that ORACLE’s discriminatory
recruiting and hiving practices skewed the racial composition of the applicant flow data to favor
Asians, particulatly Asian Indians, and disfavored other racial groups for PT1 roles. In order to
further analyze ORACLE’s recruitment and hiring practices for PT'l roles, OFCCP made multiple
requests to ORACLE for copies of all application materials for all expressions of interest, including
but mot limited to names of hiring managers, employee referrals, requisition dates, hire dates, and
copies of job postings and job requirements. Because ORACLE failed to provide complete and
accurate information in response to OFCCP’s multiple requests, ORC'CP presumes thal the
information not produced would have been unfavorable to ORACLE.

OFCCP v. Oracle America, Inc., 2017-OFC-00006

! Asinn Indiags make-up less thaw 19 of the U.S. population. Asians in the U.S. labor force: profile of a diverse population,
US. DOL, Bureaw of Labor Stedstics,  Monthly  Labor Review,  November 2011,
hup:/wwyw.bls.govlapubimir/201 §/ 11 act1 full pdf,

. Availability statisties for the Software Developers, Apptieations & Systams Softwere Occupation in the United States is
based upon 2006-2010 Census and/or 2013-2014 DOL, Burcau of Labor Statistics' Labor Farcs Statistics,

3 See footnate 2.

Exhibit 3 to the Declaration of Laura Bremer
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CORRECTIVE ACTION:

ORACLE must agree {o revise its personnel practices and procedures to ensure that the qualified
non-Asian applicants for the PT1 roles are afforded equal employment opportunity for recruitment

and selection. ORACLE must also agree to provide the following “make-whole relief” to the non-
Asian applicants.

a) Notice: Send notification to the class members fo inform them of their rights and the potential
remedies,

b) Job Offer: Make bona-fide job offers on a priority basis at the rate of pay that class merbers

would pow be earning had ORACLE hired them on the date of the first opportunity following
their application.

¢) Mopetary Setlement: Pravide back pay plus quarterly compounded interest st the IRS
underpayment rate for the class members. Back pay will be calculated from the date clasg
members should have been hired to the date the violation is resolved in a signed Conciliation
Agreement or a bosa fide job offer is made to the respective class members. Provide any and

all employment benefits that the class members would have received had it not been for the
discrimination described above; and

-~
P

d) Policies and Training: Develop recruitment and hiring policies that comply with Bxecutive
Order 11246, as amended, and its implementing regulations; provide mandeatory training on
tie policies to supervisory, management and recruitment professionals involved ip
ORACLE’s recrnitment and selection process; and evaluats performance and compensation of

supervisory, management and recruitment professionals based upon compliance with the
policies.

COMPENSATION DISCRIMINATION (VIOLATIGNS 2-5)
2. VIOLATION:

Beginning no later than January 1, 2013, and continving thereafter, ORACLE discriminated against
female employees in Information Technology, Product Development, and Support rales besed upon

sex by paying them less than comparable males employed in similar roles, in violation of 41 CFR,
60-1.4(a)(1).

During the compliance review, OFCCP reviewed employment policies, practices, and tecords;
interviewed management, human resources, and non-managemeat employees; examined employee
cornplaints; enalyzed individual employee compensation data and other evidence; and conducted an
onsite inapeciion of the worksite. Based upon the evidence gathered during the compliance review,

* ORACLE refused 10 provide OFCCP with complete compensation data for all relevant oemployees, including contract and
contingent emplayees, for tho full review period. ORACLE also did not provide eny data demonstretiog that jis continutng
compensation disparities have been remedied. Accordingly, OFCCP presumes such data would b unfavorable (0 ORACLE,

e

OFCCP v. Oracle America. Inc., 2017-0FC-00006 Exhibit 3 to the Declaration of Laura Bremer
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OFCCP cvaluated and analyzed ORACLE's compensation system and, through regression and other
analysis, found statistically sipnificant pay disparities based upon sex after controlling for legitimate
explanatory factors. The results of OFCCP’s regression analyses are attached. (Attachment A).

Besed upon the analysis conducted and the evidence guthered during the compliance evaluation,
ORCCP finds that ORACLE paid male employees in Information Technology, Product
Development, and Support roles at a rate significantly greater than their female counterparls who
were equally or more qualified ORACLE's compensetion practices resulted in unlawful
discrimination against female employees based upon sex.

CORRECTIVE ACTION:

ORACLE must agree to taks steps to ensure that its compensation system is nondiscriminatory to al)
of its employees, regardless of sex. This applies to all aspects of compensation, including but not
limited to, salary at the time of placement into roles, annual salary adjustments and iucentive
compensation ju Information Technology, Product Development, and Support soles, ORACLE
agrees to: 1) cease the discriminatory compensation practice(s) resulting in lower pay and adverse
impact against females in Information Technology, Product Development, and Support roles; 2)
provide meke-whole remedies to the class of females to include back pay, interest, and ather
cmployment benefits; and 3) provide training to employees involved in seiting and increasing
compensation to ensure that the violation does not recur.

- VIOLATION:

Beginning no later than Jaouary 1, 2013, and continuing thereafier, ORACLE discriminated against
Afiican Americans in Product Development roles based upon race by paying them less than
comparable Whites employed in similar roles, in violation of 41 CFR. 60-1.4¢a)(1).5

During the compliance review, OFCCP reviewed employment policies, practices, and records;
interviewed mansgement, human Fesources, and non-management employees; examined employee
complaints; analyzed individual employee compensation data and other evidence; and conducted an
onsite inspection of the worksite. Baged upon the evidonce gathered during the compliance review,
OFCCP evaluated and analyzed ORACLE's compeasatian system and, through regression and other
analysts, found statistically significant pay dispasities based upon race after controlling for legitimate
explanatary factors. The results of ORCCP's regression anslysis are attsched. (Atinchment A).

Based upon the analysis conducted and the evidence gathered during the compliance evaluation,
OFCCP finds thet ORACLE paid White employees in Product Development roles at 3 rate
significantly greater than their African American countespants who were equally or more qualified.

ORACLE’s compensation practices resultad in unlawful diserimination ageinst African American
employees based upon race.

OFCCP v. Oracle America, Inc., 2017-OFC-00006

5 Sez fooinate 4.
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CORRECTIVE ACTION:

ORACLE must agree to take steps to ensure that its compensation system is nondiscriminatory to all
of its employees, regardless of race. This applies to all aspects of compensation, inoluding but not
limited to, salary at the time of placement into roles, annual salary adjustments and jncentive
compensation in Product Development roles. ORACLE egrees to; 1) cease the discriminatory
compensation practice(s) resulting in lower pay and adverse impact against African Americans ip
Product Development roles; 2) provide make-whole remedies to the class of African Americans to
include back pay, interest, and other employment benefits; and 3) provids training to employees
involved in setting and increzsing compensation to ensure that the violation does not recur.

4. VIOLATION:

Beginning no later then January 1, 2013, and continuing thereafter, ORACLE discriminated against
Asians in Product Development roles based upon race by paying them less than comparable Whites
employed in similar roles, in violation of 41 C.FR. 60-1.4(a)1).

During the compliance review, OFCCP reviewed employment policies, practices, and records;
interviewed management, human resources, and non-management employees; examined employee
complaints; analyzed individual employee compensation data end other evidence; and conducted ag o
onsite inspection of the worksite. Based upon the evidence gathered dusing the compliance review, i
OFCCP evaluated and analyzed ORACLE’s compensation system and, through regression and other
analysis, found statistically significant pay disparities baged upon race after controlling for legitimate
explanatory factors, The results of ORCCP’s regression avelysis arc attached. (Attachment A).

Based upon the apalysis conducted and the evidence gathered during the compliance evaluation,
OFCCP finds that ORACLE paid White employees in Product Development roles at a rate
significantly greates than their Asian counterparts who were equally or more qualified. ORACLE's

compensition practices resuited in unlawful discimination against Asian employees based upon
race,

CORRECTIVE ACTION:

ORACLE must agres to take steps to ensure that its compeosation system is nondiscriminatory to all
of its employees, regardless of race, This applies to all aspects of compensation, including but not
limited to, salary at the time of placement into roles, annual salary adjustments and incentive
compensation in Product Development roles. ORACLE agrees to; 1) cease the discriminatory
compensation practice(s) resulting in lower pay and adverse impact against Asians in Product
Development roles; 2) provide make-whole remedies to the class of Asians to include back pay,
interest, and other employment benefits; and 3) provide tralning to employees invelved in seiting
and increasing compensation to ensure that the violation does not. racur,

¢ Ses footnote 4.

Promd
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5. VIOLATION:

Beginning oo later than January 1, 2013, and continuing thereafter, ORACLE discriminated against
Americans in Product Development and Support roles based upon national origin by paying them

Jess thnn.’compnmble non-Americans employed in similar roles, in violation of 41 CFR. 60-
L4(a)(1).

During the compliance review, OPCCP reviewed employment palicies, practices, and records;
interviewed management, human resources, and non-management employees; examined employee
complaints; analyzed individual employee compensation data and other evidence; evaluated public
disclosure files and related wage determination memorands; and conducted an onsite inspection of

and analyzed ORACLE's compensation system and, through regression and other analysis, fonnd
statisticatly significant pay disparities based upon national origin after controlling for legitimate
explanatory factors. The results of OFCCP's Tegression analysis are aitached. (Attachment A),

Based upon the analysis conducted and the evidence gathered during the compliance evaluation,
OFCCP finds that ORACLE paid non-American employees in Product Development and Support

qualified, ORACLE's compensation practices resulted in unlawful discrimination against American
employees based upon national origin.

CORRECTIVE ACTION:

ORACLE must agree to take steps to easure that its compensation system is nondiscriminatory to all
of its employees, regardless of nationat origin, This applies to all aspects of compensation, including
but oot limited to, salary at the time of placemcat into roles, annual salary adjustments and lnceative
compeasation in Product Development and Support roles. ORACLE agrees (0: 1) cease the
discriminatory compensation practice(s) resulting in lower pay and advetso impact against
Americans in Product Development and Support roles; 2) provide make-whole remedies to the class
of Americans to include back pay, interest, and other employment benefits; and 3) provide training

to employees involved in sefting and increasing compensation to ensure that the violation does not
recur.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION VIOLATIONS {(VIOLATIONS 6-8)

6. YIOLATION:
ORACLE failed to perform an in-depth analysis of ifs total employment processes to determine
whether and whers impediments to equal employment opportunity exist as required by 41 CE.R. 60

2.17(b)(3). Specifically, ORACLE failed to identify problem areas in its compensation systemf(s) to
determine whether sex or race baged disparities existed.

7 Sea foomole 4.

i ibi laration of Laura Bremer
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CORRECTIVE ACTION:

ORACLE must agres to perform in-depth analyses of its total employmeant processes to determine
whether and where impedimeats to equal employmont opportunity exist. ORACLE must agree to
evaluate its compensation system(s), specifically base salary, bonus programs, starting wages, pay
increases, restricted stock units (RSU) or other stock awards, promotions relative to pay, and any
other benefits, to determine whether there are sex, race or national origin based pay disparities.
ORACLE will incorporate these analyses and determinations into its current AAP and will update
these analysos at least anmually and incorporate them into fature AAPs.

7. VIOLATION:

ORACLE failed to demonstrate good faith efforts to develop and execute action-oriented programs
designed to comect pay disparities as of January 1, 2013. Specifically, ORACLE was unable to
demonstrate that it bad conducted any pay equity analyses, or otherwise attempled to comect the
problem areas identified in 41 CF.R, 60-2.17(b)(3) in violation of 41 C.R.R. 60-2. 17(c).

CORRECTIVE ACTION:

ORACLE must agree to conduct an in-depth analysis of its (otal employment processes (0 determine '*;(
wheibier any impedimeats to equal opportunity exist. ORACLE must then develop and implement
action-oriented programs designed to remove any identified impediments and instituts salary
adjustment procedures (o determine where and how equity adjustments should be made to epsure
nondiscrimination.

8. VIQLATION:

ORACLE failed to develop and implement an internal sudit and reporting system that periodically
measured the effectiveness of its total affirmative action program as required by 41 CER. 60-
2.17(d). Specifically, ORACLSE failed to monitor its records of all personnel activities, such as
compensation, at all levels to ensire its nondiscriminatory policy was carried out.

CORRECTIVE ACTION:

ORACLE must agree to implement an internal audit and reporting system to periodically measure

the effectiveness of its total affirmative action program. ORACLE must agres to take the following
corrective actions:

a) Monitor records of all personnel activity, such as all components of compensation, (o ensure
the noo-discriminatory policy is enfarced:

b) Requice internal reporting on a scheduled hasis as io the degree to which equal employment
opportunity and organizational objectives are attained;

¢} Review reports with all levels of management; g

OFCCP v. Oracle America, Inc., 2047-OFC-00006 Exhibit 3 to the Declaration of L?:ura B_{re:f‘r;ezr
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d) Advise top mansgement about the effectiveness of the equal employment Opportunity
program and submit recommendations to improve any unsetisfactory performance; and

€) Provide training to all employees who participate in any component of ORACLE's
compensation system(s).

RECORDKEEPING AND ACCESS VIOLATIONS (VIOLATION 9-10)
9 VIOLATION:

ORACLE failed to collect and maintain personnel and employment records and conduct adverse
impact analyses in accordance with the requirernents of 41 CFR. 60-1.12(a8) and Part 603,

Additionally, ORACLE failed to conduct the adverse impact analyses required by 41 C.ER. 60-
3.15A and 60-3.4.

CORRECTIVE ACTION:

ORACLE will ensure that its records are collected and maintained in accordance with the
requirements of 41 C.F.R. 60-1.12(a) and Part 60-3, ORACLE will conduct adverse impact analyses
on at least an anmwal basis for the purpose of determining whether adverse impact exists against
applicants based ob race, sex, or national origin/ethnic group in hiring, promotion, termination, and

10. VIOLATION:

ORACLE denied OFCCP access to records, including prior year compensation data for al]
employess and complete hiring data for PT! roles during the review period of January 1, 2013
through June 30, 2014, which are relevant to the matter under investigation and pertinent to
ORACLE's compliance with Executive Order 11246, as amended, and the regulatory requirements
at41 CE.R. 60-1.12; 60-1.20; 60-1.43; 60-2.32 and 60-3.4,

CORRECTIVE ACTION:

ORACLE must immediately provide to OFCCP all relevant compensation and hiring data, which
was requested on April 27, 2015, May 11, 2015, May 28, 2015, July 30, 2015, October 1, 2015,
October 14, 2015, Novapaber 2, 2015, and December 15, 2015.

i = a Exhibit 3 to the Declaration of Laura Bremer
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Finally, please note that nothing herein is intended to relieve ORACLE from the obligation to comply
with the requirements of B.O. 11246, Section 50 , andfor VEVRAA, their implementing regulations, or
any other equal employment opportunity/ nondiscrimination statute, executive order or regulation. In
addition, this Notice of Violation in no way limits the applicability of the reviged regulations

implementing Section 503, 41 CF.R. Part 60-741 (2014) and the revised regulations implementing
VEVRAA, 41 CFR. Part 60-300 (2014),

A ey

In order to come into compliancs, ORACLE must enter into a binding Conciliation Agreement with
OFCCP that encompasses all of the comective actions described above. It is our desire to avoid
enforcement proceedings. You may confact me at (415) 625-7839 within five (5) business days of

receipt of this letter if ORACLE would like to begin conciliation and resolution of the specified
violations.

Sincerely, _
V’.Robc;t Doles
District Director

==
;

-

cc:  Shauna Holman-Haries (viz email: shauga.holmau.hmﬁas@ORACLB.com}
Director Diversity Compliancs, Oracle America, Inc.

Juana Schurman (viz email: juana.schurmean @ORACLE, com)

Vice President and Associate Geperal Counsel, Oracle Americs, Inc.

Gary R. Siniscaleo (vig email; arsiniscalco@orrick.com)
Orrick Hervington & Sutcliffe LLP

Enclosure

T
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- ATTACHMENT A

COMPENSATION DISCRIMINATION (VIOLATIONS 2-5)
Analysis of Employees® Annuat Salary and Gender

The United States Department of Labor, Office of Pederal Contract Compliance Programs (“OFCCP™)
conducted statistical analysis of the employment records Oracle America, Inc. (“Oracle”) provided to ORCCP
during its equal employment opportunity investigation of Orasle’s facility in Redwood Shores, Californig,
ORCCP analyzed Oracle employees® compensation data by Oracle job function using a mode} that included the
natural log of annual salary as a dependent variable, and accounted for differences in emplayees’ gender, work

experience at Oracle, work experience prior to Oxacle, full-time/part-time gtatus, exempt status, global career
level, job specialty, and job title.

As displayed in tho table below, the results of the analysis show a statistically significant salary disparity
adverse to female employees in Information Technology, Product Development, and Support roles,

Regression Analysis of Female and Male Employees’

Salary Difference at Oracle
Year! Class Naomber of Standard
Pemale Class Devigtions
Members
Female
Information
2014 Technology 133 27
Bmployses
Famale
Product
2014 Development 1,207 -8.41
Employees
Female
Support
2014 Employees 47 +3.67

! Oracle provided OFCCP with one year of compensstion data that included Oraclo employees who were employed ar the
relevant facility on Januery 1, 2014. "Oracle refuged to provide OFCCP with its prior year compensntion data,

; ibi laration of Laura Bremer
OFCCP v. Oracle America, Inc., 2017-OFC-00006 Exhibit 3 lo the Declaral i
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Annlysis of Employees’ Annual Salary snd Race @

The United States Department of Labor, OFCCP conducted statistical anelysis of the employment recordy
Oracle provided to OFCCP during its equal employmeat opportunity investipation of Oracle’s facility in
Redwood Shores, California. OFCCP analyzed Oracle cmployees® compensation data by Oracle job function
using a model that included the natural log of anmal salary as a dependent variable, and accounted for
differences in employees® mce, work experience at Oracle, work experience prior io Oracle, full-time/part-time
status, exempt status, global career level, job specialty, and job title,

As displayed in the table below, the results of the analysis show a statistically significant sal

ary disparity
adverse to African American and Asian employees in Product Development roles.
Regression Analysls of African American and White Employees’
Salary Difference st Oracle
Year® Class Number of Standand
Black Class Deviations
Members
X Africen American
Product ;
2014 Development 27 -2.10 L6
L Employess - s
Regression Analysis of Asian and White Enrployees’
Salary Difference at Oracle
Yesr’ Class Number of Standard
Asian Class Deviations
Members
Asian }
Product
2014 Davalopment 3,085 .55
Bmployees

? Oracle provided ORCCP with one year of compensation data that included Oracle employess who were employed at the
relevant facility on January 1,2014. Oracle refused ta provide the Agesicy grior year compensetion data.

? Orecls provided OFCCP with one year of compensation data that included Orncle employees who were emplayed at the

relevant facillty on January 1,2014. Oracle refused (o provide the Agency prior year compsnsation data_ f,\
2
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Analysis of Employees’ Annual Salary and National Origin

The United States Depertment of Labor, OFCCP conducted statistical epalysis of the employment recordg
Oracle provided to OFCCP during its equal employment opportunity investigation of Oracle’s facility jn
Redwood Shores, California. OFCCP analyzed Oracle employees’ compensation data by Oracle job function
using a model that included the patural log of annual selary as s dependent variable, and accounted for
differences in employees® national origin, work experience at Oracle, wo.

rk experience prior to Oracle, full-
time/pari-time status, exempt status, global career level, job specialty, visa status, and job title,

As displayed in the table below, the results of the analysis show a staf

istically significant salary disparity
adverse to American employees in Product Development and Support roles,

Regression Analysis of American and Non-American Employees’

Salary Difference at Oracle
Year' Class Number of Standard
American Pevintions
Class Members
American
Product
2014 Development 3,501 -1.01
Employees
Amesican
rt
2014 Es“;izm 185 -3.65
i)

* Oracle provided OFCCP with one year of coropensation data that included Oracle

employees who were employed at the
relevant facility on January 1, 2014. Oracle refused to provide the Agency prior year compensation dats,
3
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